
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, JANUARY 7, 2013, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___;  

 
3. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

For the purpose of discussion of the public body regarding Town Manager 
selection process, in accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(1). 
 

4. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

5. INVOCATION PERFORMED BY PASTER WAYNE DOUGLAS, GILA RIVER 
COMMUNITY CHAPEL. 

 
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of Council shall not discuss or 
take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters 
are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS 
a. Public Hearing on ORDINANCE NO. 590-13: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN 

OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 
150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTIONS 150.059 DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL 
(DC) AND 150.047 DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS TABLES (B) (First 
Reading). 
 

b. Introduction and acknowledgement of promotions within the Police 
Department: David Peterson, Sergeant and Steve Geib, Lead Dispatcher. 
 

yvonneh
Highlight



9. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 
of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called. 

 
a. *Reappointment of Sheree Berger and Eugene Horan to the Library 

Advisory Board with a term to expire December 31, 2014. 
 

b. * Reappointment of Don Pinson to the Parks and Recreation Board with a 
term to expire December 31, 2015. 
 

c. *Reappointment of Barry Reed, James Petty, and Larry Putrick to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2015. 
 

d. *Reappointment of Elizabeth Kizer and Sharon Speck to the 
Redevelopment Commission with terms to expire December 31, 2016. 
 

e. *Reappointment of Jorganne Cochran, Chris Reid, Lynn Smith, and Betty 
Wheeler to the Historic District Advisory Commission with a term to expire 
December 31, 2015; Appointment of Cathy Adam to the Historic Advisory 
Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2014.  
 

f. *Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control regarding the Caliente Casa De 
Sol’s application for a Special Event Liquor License for the following dates: 
February 15, 19, 20, 22, and 24, 2013 for the 2013 Spring Fling Events.   
 

g. *Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control regarding the Florence 
Gardens Mobile Home Association’s application for a Special Event Liquor 
License for Three Parks Wine and Micro Brew Fund Raiser on January 29, 
2013. 
 

h. *Acceptance of the public improvement for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
Subdivision Units 17B and 18.   
 

i. *Approval of the December 3, 10, and 11, 2012 Town Council Meeting 
minutes. 

 
j. *Receive and file the following Board and Commission minutes: 

i. September 19, and November 28, 2012 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board 
minutes 

ii. August 16, 2012 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes 
iii. October 30, 2012 Redevelopment Commission minutes 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
a. Reconsideration (Discussion/Approval/Disapproval) of the Design Review 

application for a Town of Florence downtown historic district monument 

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight

yvonneh
Highlight



sign located at the northeast corner of Main Street and Butte Avenue in 
Florence, Arizona, (HDAC-08-12-DR). 
 

11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Mayor appointment of Chair Elizabeth Kizer and Vice Chair Anne Cartier-
Bresson to the Redevelopment Commission with a term to expire 
December 31, 2013. 

12. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

13. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 

14. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body with the Town Attorney 
regarding contract negotiations relating to the Florence Ranch and Majestic 
Ranch development agreements in accordance with A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4).  

 
15. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
16.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED THE 3rd DAY OF JANUARY 2013, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

yvonneh
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a. 

MEETING DATE: January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director  
 
SUBJECT: Adopt Ordinance 590-13:  Downtown  
                   Commercial Text Amendment   
                   (PZC-04-12-ORD) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 
Downtown Commercial Text Amendment 

January 7, 2013 
1 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing and first reading only on January 7, 2013.  
 
On January 22, 2013, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 590-13 for the Downtown 
Commercial Text Amendment. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence requests approval of the following application: 

PZC-04-12-ORD: A Text Amendment application to amend the 
Town of Florence Code of Ordinances. More specifically, an 
Ordinance of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, Arizona 
amending Title XV: Land Usage, Chapter 150 Development Code, 
Sections 150.059 Downtown Commercial (DC) and 150.047 District 
Use Regulations Tables (B). 

 
The Downtown Commercial (DC) Zoning District currently encompasses a land 
area that is generally bordered by Ruggles Street to the north, Butte Avenue to 
the south, Granite Street to the west and Bailey Street to the east. An additional 
property was zoned to DC after the original DC area was established to include 
four existing residential structures at the southwest corner of Granite Street and 
6th Street. The purpose of the DC Zoning District is to provide a legal zoning 
category that helps to maintain and enhance the character of the downtown 
historic core. The intent of the District is to promote a pedestrian-oriented 
specialty retail district by encouraging the improvement of the pedestrian 
environment, delineating the appropriate land uses within the District and 
ensuring that new buildings are designed to be compatible with the historic fabric 
of the area and development continues to occur at the appropriate scale. 



 
Downtown Commercial Text Amendment 

January 7, 2013 
2 

 

 
A range of uses are permitted in the DC Zoning District that are intended to 
encourage and promote its pedestrian, specialty retail and historic character.  
Residential uses are encouraged as part of mixed use developments, i.e., they 
are vertically or horizontally integrated into commercial and office environments.  
The range of uses permitted in the DC Zoning District are intended to underscore 
the uniqueness of the area.      

  
Staff is proposing multiple text changes to the DC Zoning District to improve 
reinvestment opportunities and enhance economic development in the District.  
These include: eliminating the prohibition of a drive through for banks; changes 
to allow hotels, bed and breakfast facilities, movie theaters and grocery stores as 
principally permitted uses in the DC Zone; providing consistency in setback 
requirements for commercial and residential uses; and eliminating most parking 
requirements in the District.  

 
The setback requirements for commercial and residential uses are not consistent 
in the DC Zoning District.  Since the District is intended to be mixed use—with 
both residential and commercial uses ideally existing within the same building—it 
is not necessary to differentiate setbacks between commercial and residential 
uses.  This text amendment proposes the same setbacks for commercial and 
residential uses in the DC Zoning District. 

 
Properties within the DC Zoning District are built up to or close to the property 
line which is an integral aspect of their historic character.  As a result, properties 
within the DC Zoning District are generally unable to provide on-site parking.  
The DC Zoning District currently requires on-site parking which makes it difficult 
for a new business to locate within the District because they often cannot meet 
the parking requirement.  This Amendment proposes to eliminate the parking 
requirement, with the exception of ADA requirements and some loading 
requirements, within the DC Zoning District.  Such can be done since the supply 
of nearby public parking is adequate within and surrounding the District. 

These changes are intended to facilitate business development and economic 
development in the Town of Florence and have been supported by the Town’s 
Economic Development Coordinator. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None directly, but this amendment can potentially facilitate increased economic 
development and redevelopment opportunities within the historic downtown core 
that in turn could equate to new investments into vacant and/or under utilized 
properties and ultimately greater sales tax revenues. 
 
 
 
 



 
Downtown Commercial Text Amendment 

January 7, 2013 
3 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This amendment was discussed at a Town Council work session, presented to 
the Historic District Advisory Commission and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation on this case 
to the Town Council. 
 
Public Hearing and first reading only on January 7, 2013.  
 
On January 22, 2013, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 590-13 for the Downtown 
Commercial Text Amendment. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Ordinance No. 590-13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 590-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 
150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTIONS 150.059 DOWNTOWN 
COMMERCIAL (DC) AND 150.047 DISTRICT USE 
REGULATIONS TABLES (B). 

 
 WHEREAS, development codes are designed to protect the health, safety 
and general welfare of the public and are subject to modifications to ensure that 
codes are current and meet the needs of the local community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, deficiencies have been noted in current development codes 
pertaining to the Downtown Commercial (DC) Zoning District in Florence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has proposed this Ordinance to 
address such deficiencies and ensure that our local development codes 
pertaining to the DC Zoning District are appropriate and current for the Town of 
Florence; and  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance is intended to promote economic development 
within the Florence downtown historic core; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Florence Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a 
public hearing on this Ordinance and they have sent the Mayor and Council a 
favorable recommendation on this proposed Ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence as follows: that the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances, Title 
XV land Usage, Chapter 150 Development Code, Sections 150.059 Downtown 
Commercial (DC) and 150.047 District Use Regulations Tables (B) is hereby 
amended. 

 
Section 1. That the recitals contained in this Ordinance are hereby 

adopted and incorporated herein as findings of the fact of the Mayor and Council 
of the Town of Florence. 

 
Section 2.  That if any word, sentence, paragraph, clause, phrase or other 

provisions of this ordinance is for any reason deemed to be unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holdings shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining words, sentences, paragraphs, clauses, 
phrases or other provisions of this ordinance, it being the legislative intent that in 
such event the remainder of this ordinance shall stand, notwithstanding the 
invalidity of any word, sentence, paragraph, clause, phrase or other provision. 
 



SECTION 150.059  DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL (DC). 
 
 (A) Purpose.  The purpose of the Downtown Commercial zoning district is to:  
maintain and enhance the character of the historic buildings within the central 
business district area of historic downtown Florence; and facilitate opportunities 
for redevelopment and new development. downtown redevelopment area. The 
intent of the Use and development standard regulations for the DC District are 
designed is to promote a pedestrian-oriented specialty retail and mixed-use 
district by encouraging the improvement of the pedestrian environment, 
delineating the appropriate land uses within the DC District and ensuring that 
new and renovated buildings are designed to be compatible with the historic 
fabric of the area and at a human scale consistent with existing buildings within 
the DC District.   It is intended that this district accommodate a specific range of 
uses including specialty retail, government, business and professional offices 
and residential uses. 
 
 (B) Permitted uses. 
 
  (1) Permitted uses in the DC downtown commercial zoning district shall 
be only those uses listed provided that all commercial activities be conducted 
entirely within the street frontage of the buildings and on the first floor of the 
buildings. Residential uses are encouraged as a mixed use with the commercial 
activities. Outdoor patios and seating areas are encouraged to add to the 
pedestrian environment and social interaction at the street. Drive-through 
windows are prohibited. Permitted uses are subject to all other applicable 
standards of this section. No building permit shall be issued for a use not 
specifically identified herein and until design review and building plan approval 
has been granted by the town and the appropriate reviewing boards or 
commissions; 
   
  (2)(1) Personal and household services, such as clothing alteration, 
seamstress shop, shoe repair shops, beauty and barber shops, jewelry and 
watch repair, small appliance repairs, bank (without drive-through window), credit 
union, travel agency, launderette and dry cleaners (without processing); 
 
  (3)(2) Specialty retail uses including, but not limited to, gift shops, 
stationery and card stores, clothing stores, bicycle shop, bookstores, art supply 
shops, florists, bakery, photo shop, copy/printing shops, photo studios, 
delicatessen, coffee house, candy shop, billiards parlor, movie theater, 
neighborhood grocery store, sporting goods store and ice cream shop; 
 
  (4) Photographic studio, printing shop, publishing or photostatting shop; 
 
  (5) Music and video store, sporting goods store, bicycle shop, movie 
theater, billiards parlor, provided the building and/or stores are under 5,000 
square feet; 



  
  (6) Apparel and accessories; 
 
  (7)(3) Art studios for the production and teaching of fine art, when 
located above the first floor or behind the commercial frontage; 
 
  (8)(4) Art galleries, antiques, crafts, consignment and collectibles 
sales; 
 
  (9)(5) Restaurants (excluding drive-in and drive-through facilities), 
cafeterias, taverns, liquor store and outdoor dining when ancillary to restaurant 
use; 
 
  (10)(6) Hotels and Bed and Breakfasts; with all guest rooms located 
behind the commercial frontage or above the first floor; 
 
  (11)(7) Residential units provided they are located behind the Main 
Street commercial frontage on the first street level floor, or located on the second 
above the street level floor if along the Main Street frontage and/or on any floor 
where not located along the Main Street frontage; above the commercial uses; 
 
  (12)(8) Professional and administrative offices; 
 
  (13)(9) Private club or lodge provided the facilities are under 5,000 
square feet; and 
 
  (14) Bank and similar financial institutions. 
 
  (10)   Those uses permitted in the DC Zoning District per Table 
150.047.B. Employment and/or commercial zoning district use regulations. 
 
 (C) Conditional uses.  Reserved. Uses may be permitted subject to a 
Conditional Use Permit (see Section 150.015 and Table 150.047.B). 
 

(1) Those uses conditionally permitted in the DC Zoning District per 
 Table 150.047.B. 

 
 Because no list of uses can be exhaustive, decisions on unspecified uses 
shall be rendered by the Planning and Zoning Commission with appeal to the 
Town Council. 
 
Because no list of uses can be exhaustive, interpretations on unspecified uses 
shall be rendered by the Town Community Development Director with the right to 
appeal to the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council. 
 
 



 (D) Development standards.  The chart which follows specifies the maximum 
building heights and minimum yard setbacks. 
 
  (1) Setbacks. 
 

Minimum Yard Setbacks* 

Land Use Front Side Street Side  Rear 

Commercial 0 feet 0 feet 0 feet 10 feet0 feet 

Residential 20 feet0 feet 10 feet0 feet 15 feet0 feet 20 feet0 feet 

 
*While zero lot line development is encouraged in the DC District, compliance 
with other applicable code requirements, such as building and fire codes, is still 
required. 
  
  (2) Area and bulk requirements. 
 

Minimum 
Site Area 

Minimum  
Lot Area 

Minimum  
Lot Width 

Minimum  
Lot Depth 

Maximum 
Height 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 35  feet * 

* As measured from grade. 

 
 (E) Parking regulations. With the exception with any potentially applicable 
requirements for ADA (handicap accessible) parking for any new or redeveloped 
property in the DC District and loading requirements for any commercial business 
over 5,000 square feet, no on-site parking shall be required in the DC Zoning 
District. Other applicable The parking regulations are as provided in § 150.155 
Part 7. Parking; Loading and Unloading of the Development Code.  
 
 (F) Compliance with other provisions. 
 
  (1) Historic district provisions. When a property located within the DC 
Zoning District is also located within the Town’s Historic District, the The 
provisions and regulations in § 150.066 shall apply. 
 

(2) Additional height and area regulations and exceptions. The 
provisions and regulations in Part 8. of the Development Code are applicable to 
the DC Zoning District.  § 150.164 herein. 

 
 
 
 



SECTION 150.047 DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS TABLES. 
 

(B) Employment and/or commercial zoning district use regulations. 
 
P=Permitted N=Not Permitted C=Conditional T=Temporary Uses 

 

Use B-1 B-2 TRC NO PO DC PI LI HI 

Banks without drive-through P P P P P P N N N 

Grocery and/or supermarket P P P N C CP N P P 

Hotel and/or motel C P C N C CP N P P 

 
  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this ____ day of _____ 2013.  
 
 

       
      ________________________________ 

Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9a.   

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                    Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Appointments to the Library Advisory Board 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Reappointment of Sheree Berger and Eugene Horan to the Library Advisory Board with 
a term to expire December 31, 2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In October 2012, Town staff sent notice to board and commission members whose 
terms were expiring.  Also in October, an advertisement was placed on the Town 
website, on Channel 11, and in the Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board 
and commission seats.  To our dismay, we have had very little interest in the vacant 
seats. 
 
Members of the Library Advisory Board shall reside in the Florence Unified School 
District.  Members of the Library Advisory Board serve two year terms.  
 
One seat remains vacant on the Library Advisory Board.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Reappoint Sheree Berger and Eugene Horan to the Library Advisory Board with a term 
to expire December 31, 2014. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications 

Boardmember List 





















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9b.  

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Appointments to the Parks and Recreation Board 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Reappointment of Don Pinson to the Parks and Recreation Board with a term to expire 
December 31, 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In October 2012, Town staff sent notice to board and commission members whose 
terms were expiring.  Also in October, an advertisement was placed on the Town 
website, on Channel 11, and in the Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board 
and commission seats.  To our dismay, we have had very little interest in the vacant 
seats. 
 
Staff will continue to advertise to fill the vacant seat.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Reappoint Don Pinson to the Parks and Recreation Board with a term to expire 
December 31, 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 

Boardmember List 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9c.  

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Appointments to the Planning and Zoning  
                   Commission 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Reappointment of Barry Reed, James Petty, and Larry Putrick to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In October 2012, Town staff sent notice to board and commission members whose 
terms were expiring.  Also in October, an advertisement was placed on the Town 
website, on Channel 11, and in the Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board 
and commission seats.  To our dismay, we have had very little interest in the vacant 
seats. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has five members with no alternates at this time.  
The Commission may have two alternate members.  Alternates may attend meetings 
but shall not participate until the time as a vacancy has occurred and the alternate has 
filled the vacant seat. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Reappoint Barry Reed, James Petty, and Larry Putrick to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications 

Boardmember List 





























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9d.   

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Appointment to the Redevelopment Commission 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Reappointment of Elizabeth Kizer and Sharon Speck to the Redevelopment 
Commission with terms to expire December 31, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In October 2012, Town staff sent notice to board and commission members whose 
terms were expiring.  Also in October, an advertisement was placed on the Town 
website, on Channel 11, and in the Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board 
and commission seats.  To our dismay, we have had very little interest in the vacant 
seats. 
 
Commissioners will comprise a balanced cross-section of the greater Florence 
Community as well as possess the knowledge, skills, background, interest, experience 
and availability to perform the work and duties of a Redevelopment Commission as 
prescribed in Arizona Revised Statutes Section 36-1476.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Reappoint of Elizabeth Kizer and Sharon Speck to the Redevelopment Commission 
with terms to expire December 31, 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications 

Boardmember List 

















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9e. 

  

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Appointments to the Historic District Advisory  
                    Commission  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Reappointment of Jorganne Cochran, Chris Reid, Lynn Smith, and Betty Wheeler to the 
Historic District Advisory Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2015; 
Appointment of Cathy Adam to the Historic Advisory Commission with a term to expire 
December 31, 2014.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In October 2012, Town staff sent notice to board and commission members whose 
terms were expiring. Also in October, an advertisement was placed on the Town 
website, on Channel 11, and in the Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board 
and commission seats.  To our dismay, we have had very little interest in the vacant 
seats. 
 
The Historic District Advisory Commission is made up of seven Commission members.  
The Commission shall contain at least four property owners from the designated 
District.  Three or fewer places on the Commission may be filled by individuals with 
qualification in one of the following areas: historic preservation, architecture, planning, 
history, archeology or related field.  Three of fewer places on the Commission may also 
be filled by elected or appointed representative of the municipality and its various 
Commissions and authorities.  Finally, three or fewer places on the Commission may be 
filled by at-large residents of the municipality.  
 
Chris Reid, Lynn Smith and Cathy Adam are property owners in the District.  One seat 
remains vacant on the Historic District Advisory Commission, which must be filled by a 
property owner from the District. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
 
 



Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Reappoint Jorganne Cochran, Chris Reid, Lynn Smith, and Betty Wheeler to the 
Historic District Advisory Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2015; appoint 
Cathy Adam to the Historic Advisory Commission with a term to expire December 31, 
2014.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications 

Boardmember List 













































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9f.  

  

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Caliente Casa Del Sol’s  Application for a Special  
                      Event Liquor License 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Special Event Liquor License   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of 
Liquor Licenses and Control regarding the Caliente Casa De Sol’s application for a 
Special Event Liquor License for the following dates: February 15, 19, 20, 22, and 24, 
2013, for the 2013 Spring Fling Events.   

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 

The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, 
or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a 
fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 
ten (10) days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, 
payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.   
 
Events include the following: 
 
February 15, 2013 from 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. for Casino Night 
February 19, 2013 from 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. for the Spring Fling Talent Show 
February 20, 2013 from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. for the Spring Fling Chicken Challenge  
February 22, 2013 from 11:00 a.m.to 9:00 p.m. for the Spring Fling Cantina Saloon 
February 24, 2013 from 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. for Horse Races 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends the Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications 











































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9g.  

  

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Florence Gardens Mobile Home Association    
                    Application for a Special Event Liquor License 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Special Event Liquor License   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of 
Liquor Licenses and Control regarding the Florence Gardens Mobile Home 
Association’s application for a Special Event Liquor License for Three Parks Wine and 
Micro Brew Fund Raiser on January 29, 2013.   

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 

The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, 
or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a 
fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 
ten (10) days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, 
payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends the Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 

















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9h. 

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Wayne J. Costa, Public Works  
                                     Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:    Acceptance of the public improvements for the 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch Subdivision Units No. 17B and 18 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
 
Subject: Anthem at Merrill Ranch Units 17B and 18 Improvements            Meeting Date:  January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve the acceptance of the improvements prior to the start of the warranty period 
which shall be the date of this approval. 
 
The Town Engineer has found that all of the pavements, utilities, storm sewer, 
grading/drainage improvements and all other required improvements within the right-of-
way/easements have been constructed in accordance with the requirements of the 
Town Code and specified Engineering Standards. 
  
The following documentation represents the perquisite for approval including the 
delivery of required certification together with test results and as-built drawings.  
 

DOCUMENTATION 

 Final Grading and Drainage As-Builts 
 Final Paving and Profile Plans 
 Final Water and Sewer Plans As-Builts 
 Water Pressure, Leak, Chlorine and Bacteria Testing 
 Sewer Pressure, Mandrel, Camera, Vacuum, Insecticide Testing 
 Material Testing Package 
 Engineers Certificates of Construction for Water and Sewer 
 ADEQ Approval of Construction for Water and Sewer 
 Fire Department Acceptance Document 
 Johnson Utilities Acceptance Document 
 Dry Utility Drawings 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The property is located in the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Subdivision owned by Pulte 
Homes, Inc., with Jack Johnson Company, as the Engineer of Record. Pulte Homes, 



 
Subject: Anthem at Merrill Ranch Units 17B and 18 Improvements            Meeting Date:  January 7, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Inc., has completed the public improvements necessary for the development of Unit 17B 
& 18 of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Subdivision and has requested the Town of 
Florence to accept the completed improvements for ownership and maintenance.   
 
All improvements in the public right-of-way or easements have been constructed under 
inspection and approval of the Town Engineer/Public Works Department and/or utility 
company having jurisdiction. The following improvements with regards to Unit 17B and 
18 has been completed and are subject to a one (1) year warranty period prior to 
acceptance for maintenance; grading, paving, concrete, water, sewer, signing, 
pavement markings, and storm drain.  Street lighting has been completed and is subject 
to a two (2) year warranty period prior to maintenance acceptance.  Acceptance of 
maintenance of these improvements will be by separate document at the end of the 
warranty period. 
 
The developer shall maintain the subdivision improvements, free from defects, for the 
warranty period and shall promptly correct any defect which they have noticed or which 
the Town discovers which occurs prior to the terminus of the warranty period from the 
date of the acceptance of all improvements. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Acquisition of infrastructure assets will be based upon acceptance of assets by the 
Town Council recorded as specified in the Capital Asset Policy and Procedure prior to 
acceptance for maintenance/replacement by the Town.  A summary of quantities for 
each asset will be accepted into the Town’s maintenance system, (excepting 
water/sewer utilities) and the total annual estimated costs for the operation and 
maintenance of these items are as follows: 
  Years          O+M 
 2 thru 5    $   48,000 (Total) 
 6 thru 20    $ 148,000 (Total 
 21st*     $ 481,400 (Reconstruct) 
 
*After 21st year, or as deemed necessary for reconstruction, then the O+M Costs are re-    
 cycled based upon the yearly values. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the action due to the potential social and economic 
impacts and effects of new subdivisions within Florence.  The proposed acceptance of 
this development may change the lives of current and future residents by measurement 
of the potential socio-economic impacts such as: 

 Change in demographics 
 Resulting retail / service and housing benefits 
 Change in employment and income levels 
 Changes in quality of life in the community 



 
Subject: Anthem at Merrill Ranch Units 17B and 18 Improvements            Meeting Date:  January 7, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 Satisfying current housing needs 
 Specialty house meeting the needs of the groups considered. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Letter of Acceptance (Unit 17B and 18) 
 







MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
DECEMBER 3, 2012, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:36 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, *Montaño, Hawkins, Walter, Woolridge  
*Councilmember Montaño arrived at 5:55 p.m. 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 1 of 24 
 

ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body regarding the Interim Town 
Manager contract, in accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(1). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Councilmember Hawkins led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ruth Harrison, Resident, discussed the monument sign being installed on the corner of 
Main and Butte, and briefly described the Historic District Advisory Commission’s 
suggestions pertaining to signs in the Historical District.  She said they discourage 
marquee signs with changeable type.  Town staff is proposing to install an electronic 
message center and described its height and materials.  She said staff has stated that it 
will be a non-commercial Town-owned sign on an easement dedicated by the bank to 
the Town.  She added that staff has said that the guidelines generally refer to 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 2 of 24 
 

commercial and private development and not to facilities owned by the Town.  The bank 
is partially funding the sign and Town staff proposes to install the sign facing toward the 
intersection.  She said the sign will not be visible to traffic from all directions.   
 
Ms. Harrison said in October, HDAC recommended Option A, and described its 
characteristics. She was surprised that staff has forwarded a recommendation for 
Option D.  She said staff can announce events through other avenues or at other 
locations, rather than a seven foot message center.  She requested that Council not 
adopt Option D, but would rather they adopt Option A.  
 
Himanshu Patel, Town Manager and Resident, stated that this meeting is his last official 
Council Meeting as Town Manager.  He addressed the Council by saying: 

 
“My memories of the past eleven years are everlasting, yet more memorable will be 
the future of this great community.  Government, that is what most call us; yet, that is 
what most need us.  Our product: public service; one that is unequivocal; the 
essence of quality of life.  Florence has accomplished more that most would only 
dream of.  Our leaders, yes, you, the elected ones, you are the keeper, protector, 
mother, and nurturer of this wonderful community we proudly serve.   
 
Councilmember Walter, welcome to this great community.  Your energy and drive is 
what excites the public service process. 
 
Councilmember Montaño, your sense, your history, and your diversity, provides for 
care and genuineness to serve. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins, your openness, common sense, and kind understanding 
elevates the meaning of community service.     
 
Councilmember Celaya, words cannot describe your love and passion for this 
community.  You are an exceptional human being and so dearly respected by this 
community. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge, your motherly touch is so unforgettable.  You are the 
protector, the unifier and one that provides endless common sense. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith, so humble, yet so determined, you are the master of 
compromise, one so firm with passion and determination. 
 
Mayor Rankin, complexity is nothing more than simple for you; the supporter of all 
that is Florence with insistence to speak and excitement and love for this great 
community.   
 
The magic of government is in its beauty of public service, and this Council and past 
Council that I so humbly serve understands this beauty.  People of this great 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 3 of 24 
 

community thank you for your love, your understanding, and most importantly, your 
trust.  Know that this community has great potential, ever so opportunities with 
promising achievements.   
 
To the entire Town Staff, your tireless energy and commitment is such precise, 
which makes others envious and proud of your dedication, none matched to those 
peering eyes.  
 
My most humble appreciation goes out to the Management Team.   Without such an 
incredible team, our responsibility to those we serve would be impossible.  The team 
like no other represents the value of what we are about, the value of unconditional 
public service and the value of most modest loyalty and our commitment to our great 
community.  See the future, admire the past, yet remember the opportunities for we 
are determined to further the greatness of Florence.  My very best to all.  Thank you 
very much Mayor and Council.”     

 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called. 
 
*Approval of the November 5, and November 19, 2012, Town Council Meeting 
minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda as written. 
 
 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 586-12:  
 
Himanshu Patel, Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 586-12 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED 
STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE EXISTING TOWN LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
ARIZONA AND PROVIDING FOR A RESCISSION OF SUCH ANNEXATION IF THE 
ANNEXATION IS CHALLENGED (FLORENCE MILITARY RESERVATION 
ANNEXATION NO. 2012-01 (First reading November 19, 2012). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 586-12. 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 4 of 24 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 1371-12:  

Mr. Patel read Resolution No. 1371-12 by title only.  

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE 
SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE 
BONDS (LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOL PROJECT – QUEEN CREEK AND 
CASA GRANDE CAMPUSES), SERIES 2013, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $40,000,000, TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL 
FACILITIES FOR LEGACY TRADITIONAL CHARTER SCHOOL.  

Mr. Scott Bowles, Economic Development Director, stated the resolution will allow 
Legacy Traditional Schools to issue up to $40 million of bonds for the acquisition, 
construction, and equipping of schools in the Queen Creek and Casa Grande areas.   
 
Mr. Bowles stated there is no liability incurred by issuing these bonds. By issuing these 
bonds, the Town or the IDA is not precluded from making other issues now or in the 
future.  
 
Mr. William Wilder, Ryley Carlock & Applewhite Attorneys, stated that the Florence IDA 
Board met and unanimously adopted its resolution authorizing and approving the 
issuance of the bonds.  The Florence Town Council, as the governing body of the 
Florence IDA, is required under State law, to approve the proceedings of the Florence 
IDA for the issuance of the bonds.   
 
Mr. Wilder stated that he submitted a letter to the Town, dated November 27, 2012, 
which provided information that he thought was relevant in the Council making its 
decision with regards to this matter.    
 
Mr. Wilder introduced the following:  Bridgette Finely Green, Bond Counsel; Dr. Daniel 
Bang, Legacy Traditional School; which can answer any questions that Council may 
have. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the letter he received was dated November 15, 2012.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired about the taxes, per a request she received.  She said 
there is no financial impact directly tied to the resident taxes.    
 
Mr. Wilder explained how the issuance of bonds is done.  He said the IDA has no taxing 
power.  The IDA serves as a conduit issuer because they are a pass-thru.  The interest 
is tax exempt.  The sole obligation to make payment on the principal and interest of the 
bonds rests solely on Legacy Charter School.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 5 of 24 
 

Mayor Rankin inquired how much money the IDA will realize through the sale of the 
bonds.   
 
Mr. Wilder stated that the IDA received an application fee of $3500.  He said they will 
also receive seven basis points annually on the outstanding principal of the bonds, 
which equates to approximately $28,000.  He said the amount would be diminishing as 
the bonds are paid down.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how the money received from the bond will be utilized. 
 
Me. Peter VillaVerde, IDA Member, stated that money will be used for whatever project 
the Council desires.  The IDA would like to use it for historic preservation. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if any of the money will be used for administrative costs for the 
IDA. 
 
Mr. VillaVerde said no money will be used for administrative fees; they would like to 
earmark the money for the Chamber of Commerce building and the maintenance of the 
area.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1371-12. 
 
Resolution No. 1372-12:   

Mr. Patel read Resolution No. 13712-12 by title only.  

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH CIVIC PROPERTIES, L.L.C., AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT, (Majestic Ranch) 

Mr. Himanshu Patel, Town Manager, stated this agreement is to supersede the 
agreement the Town entered into for this project with this entity in 2004.  He said the 
major changes to the agreement are: 

 Term is 20 years from date of recordation 
 Allows for provider options for water and wastewater services with Town’s 

approval 
 Development impact fees imposed at the time of issuance of building permit 
 Dedication of one acre site for a water facility 
 Dedication of 18 acres for a wastewater facility 
 Administrative Fee of $8,040 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 6 of 24 
 

Mr. Patel stated what initiated the amendments to the agreement was the possibility of 
development to the adjacent property, which is known as Florence Ranch, and in the 
interest of the owners to possibly provide the water and wastewater.  This agreement 
will allow for options for water and wastewater services.   

Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that they are trying to get 
the properties developed, and there are some challenges with regards to water and 
wastewater.  He said George Johnson purchased a large part of Florence Ranch and 
Johnson Utilities approached the Town about the idea of modifying the PUD, putting in 
a Dude Ranch, and creating something that would work more in concert with the rural 
properties that are in the area.  He said the goal that everyone is working towards is 
finding a regional solution for the water and wastewater in that area.  Both development 
agreements offer that opportunity.   

Mr. Eckhoff said the Town is working on a resolution to a Memorandum of 
Understanding Agreement that deals with the water and wastewater provisions in that 
area as well as an amendment to the Florence Ranch PUD.  He said Council will be 
seeing an amendment to the Florence Ranch Agreement in the future.   

Mr. George Johnson, Johnson Utilities, stated that he purchased what was known as 
the Florence Ranches.  He said the adjacent land owners want to be part of Johnson 
Utilities. He said they have met with Florence’s staff, and Florence wants a global 
solution.   

Mr. Johnson said the property owners have had the land for eight years and it is too 
costly for them to develop the land.  He said they have stepped in and are currently 
drilling their well.  They have two wastewater plants at their utility company to provide 
service.  Florence needs something of this nature and this can provide employment.   

Mr. Johnson said that he was blindsided that the resolutions were on the agenda.  He 
would prefer to sit down with everyone and come up with a global resolution.  He 
recommends that Council table the resolution for thirty days to see if they can come up 
with a resolution that is best for everyone. 

Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that the resolution provides a cost 
effective, alternate resolution for capital investment in the area and ensures providing 
legitimate water and wastewater to both developments (Florence Ranch and Majestic 
Ranch).  He said he is in favor of the agreement.   

Mayor Rankin inquired if this has been discussed with Mr. Johnson and interested 
parties. 

Mr. Costa stated they had previously discussed with Mr. Johnson and the other property 
owner: 

 Mode of operation  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 7 of 24 
 

 Method of permitting allowable to both developments; specifically the need for a 
208 Plan by Johnson Utilities and also a CCN which, the Town may be 
authorized by Town Council in order for Johnson Utilities to serve that area. 

 
Mr. Costa stated it is within the Town’s designated management area for wastewater, 
and the Town and Johnson Utilities both have appropriate assured water supply in order 
to serve the area.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that there is one party that is mentioned in the agreement that 
does not agree with the agreement.  He stated that his opinion is if one of the parties 
has questions, the issues need to be worked out prior to committing to the agreements. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he is surprised that Mr. Johnson is already 
performing some advancement such as putting in a well; and wasn’t aware that the 
Town had approved that.  Council has had real caution in the areas that they have 
allowed outside entities to perform things that the Town already performs in the Town.  
He supports what is most efficient and beneficial to the citizens of Florence.  He would 
like to see more information on this matter.  He doesn’t know how the item has gotten to 
the point where they are already moving forward with construction.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge concurred with Councilmember Celaya and voiced her 
opposition to the Town giving up water rights.  She said the Town should control their 
own water and it is beneficial to its citizens for them to have consistent water rates.  She 
didn’t know wells were being drilled and that the land is being prepared. 
 
Mr. Patel said that they currently do not have the right to be a public provider, which 
would require granting of an operating license by the Town and approval by the Arizona 
Corporation Commission to be a private/public water and wastewater provider.  He said 
in terms of exploratory purposes, the rules are restrictive in terms of regulatory.  Mr. 
Johnson is doing exploratory work for evaluation purposes and doing the hydrology 
modeling associated with preparation of possibly establishing a water/wastewater 
company. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge reiterated that she opposes the Town turning over their 
water rights to a private developer and does not feel it is beneficial to citizens.  
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he would still like more information that there could 
be some type of agreement or negotiation to make the benefits fair to citizens.  He is not 
against the project, but needs more information. 
 
Steven Anderson, 2 N. Central, Phoenix, Arizona, Civic Properties, Representative of 
the owners of Majestic Ranch and Sunaire Ranch properties, stated that he agreed with 
the first two-thirds of Mr. Johnson comments.  He stated that their property owners are 
not physically doing anything on the property at this time.  They would not do anything 
until they have an agreement with the Town in place.  The agreement before the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 8 of 24 
 

Council does not have the Town waive its water rights to be the water provider nor does 
it identify who will be the water/wastewater provider.    
Mr. Anderson stated that they have had an agreement with the Town since 2004, and it 
was amended in 2005.  He said Johnson Utilities and Florence Ranch are not a party to 
the current development agreement. The current agreement establishes an 
infrastructure system to serve the area south of the CAP that is not consistent with what 
any of them (Town of Florence staff, Johnson Utilities, Civic Properties), want to do, nor 
is it consistent with what they feel would be the best solution for the area.  He stated the 
agreement is outdated and they would like to replace the agreement.  The agreement is 
the first crucial step in replacing the old plan with a new plan for a regional solution for 
the area.  It does not bind the Town to enter into an agreement with Johnson Utilities.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated that they have been negotiating separately with Johnson Utilities 
and Johnson Real Estate on a separate, private, agreement.  They have met seven 
times with them since August and they have stated that they do not care about the 
agreement with the Town.  Tonight is the first time that Johnson Utilities has told them 
that they would like to part of the negotiations with the Town.  They have offered to 
share the agreement with Johnson Utilities, and they, with their lawyers, have indicated 
that they do not want to be involved in this discussion.   
 
Mr. Anderson said as they have worked on the private agreement with Johnson Utilities 
and have been the last party who have sent comments to Johnson Utilities and are 
awaiting their comments back from them.  They have received comments back from the 
Town.  He stated that Mr. Johnson has encouraged them to work very hard to get 
everything moving as quickly as possible.  He said the development agreement is a way 
to initiate the conversation.  It clears the existing plan off of the table and allows the 
Town and Johnson Utilities to work together and cooperate in terms of deciding how 
utilities should be brought to the area most efficiently.  He stated they agree to step 
back for two years so the Town and Johnson Utilities can decide what needs to be 
done.  The development agreement also requires a regional solution and identifies that 
it must include all properties south of the CAP canal.   
 
Mr. Anderson made clarification to a telephone conversation on November 19, 2012, 
between himself, Mr. Mannato, Mr. Patel, and Mr. Drummond, Attorney for Mr. Johnson.  
During that conversation they want to make one thing clear that whatever solution takes 
place south of the CAP must be a regional solution.  He said in the conversation, he 
reiterated their commitment to a regional solution, and it is in the agreement.  Mr. 
Drummond declined to endorse a regional solution.  He said there are discussions that 
need to take place between Johnson Utilities and the Town.   
 
Mr. Peter Yehemsky, Vanger Professional Service, 6321 W. Hackmore Drive, Phoenix, 
Arizona, stated that the current agreement requires that a very specific sewer solution 
be put into place and obligates civic properties to construct that solution.  The sewer 
solution services both Majestic Ranch and Sunaire Ranch and also services the 
properties owned by Johnson Real Estate, McRay Development, and several hundred 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 9 of 24 
 

acres of other properties.  He said though the agreement offers a global solution, it 
obligates a very specific piece of construction.  He said they are requesting for a 
replacement agreement because they can’t legally proceed with any alternative sewer 
solution, even though they want a regional solution, unless they replace the previous 
development agreement with one that provides for the flexibility for either Johnson 
Utilities or the Town to be the regional water and wastewater service provider with 
alternatives of how it is to be done. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she realizes the agreement is separate from 
water and wastewater; but her strong opposition is for staff to determine a way for the 
Town to control the water.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he doesn’t have enough information to agree to the 
development agreements.  He suggested that a work session be scheduled with all 
concerned parties. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he has no concerns with the development 
agreement so long as who the provider will be is left open for negotiations. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge agreed with Councilmember Celaya. 
 
Councilmember Walter stated that the item that has come before Council as an action 
item to adopt a resolution contains a lot of information to process in a short amount of 
time.  She has not had the opportunity to ask questions to staff since the agenda came 
out on Thursday, and some of the Council did not receive them until Friday.  Staff was 
not available over the weekend and there wasn’t a lot of opportunity to consult with 
anyone today.  She agrees with Mayor Rankin that they need to have a work session to 
discuss this further. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired when Majestic Ranch first came before Council. 
 
James Mannato, Town Attorney, stated that Majestic Ranch came before Council in 
2004.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated the agreement has been in effect for seven years, and he is 
against approving an additional twenty years.  He said that they need to start 
developing, and they aren’t going to get them to develop if every time they want an 
addendum to the agreement, they extend it for another twenty years.  
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if a few weeks will present any problems for the 
applicant.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated that it appears that some Council would like to proceed and others 
would prefer a work session.  He said they view the development agreement 
replacement as a necessary first step.  What he doesn’t want to happen is have the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 10 of 24 
 

process get slowed down because the necessary first step doesn’t take place.  He 
reiterated what the replacement agreement would do.  He said if invited to the work 
session, they would be happy to participate; however, if the development agreement 
were to be approved, they would no longer need to be a party.  It would then be 
between the Town and Johnson Utilities.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he has questions on the development agreement and would 
like a work session to hear all sides. 
 
Councilmember Celaya reiterated that he is not opposed to moving forward on the 
development agreement so long as they are still able to negotiate the utility provider. 
 
Mr. Patel stated that the water and wastewater provider is still on the table if the 
agreement is approved and who the provider will be will be determined at a different 
date by the Town moving forward with being the provider or going before you having an 
operating license for a third party provider.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that they shouldn’t let the negotiations with Johnson 
Utilities slow the process down for the applicant.  
 
Councilmember Walter said she has concerns with the term of twenty years. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that changes in the market and outside factors may 
cause there to be changes in the terms.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that he understands that; however, he doesn’t agree to change 
the terms to twenty years each time they change a paragraph in the agreement.   
 
Mr. Yehemsky stated that the Council has the authority to grant approval with a 
stipulation or specific modifications.  He said if the twenty year term is a concern, they 
are in agreement to a stipulation to fifteen years.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that changes are being made to the development agreement.   
 
Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, stated that he was involved in the negotiations with 
Civic Properties, and cautioned the Council that if they are not satisfied with the 
agreement before them, they need to go back to negotiations and not do so on the floor.  
He strongly urged the Council to refrain from negotiating the terms and conditions. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that the development agreement goes beyond a land development 
agreement.  He said the Johnson Group has approximately 1500 acres and others hold 
approximately 200 acres.  He thinks there should be a development agreement with all 
of them.  They have been dealing with governmental agreements that provide grants to 
detention, law enforcement and public officials for the down payment.  He said things 
aren’t going to get as good as they once were.  They need to keep people in Florence 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 11 of 24 
 

and need to make the south side and the downtown area strong again.  It takes a lot to 
bring development.  It would cost approximately $3 million to bring sewer to the site; 
which equates to approximately $7000 per lot.  His said their cost is approximately 
$1900 for both water and sewer, which is controlled by the Arizona Corporation 
Commission.  This is what they have at Anthem and its residents are happy with it.  He 
would like the opportunity to have a work session to go over the agreement.  He would 
bond whatever the Council directs and would bond to water and wastewater at any time 
for any price.  They have always been part of Florence moving forward and have been 
part of the movement to help Florence grow.  He would like to have a work session. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that one of the issues he has is with the infrastructure 
with Walker Butte.  He said there were problems with its infrastructure and they had to 
go back and redo some of it due to the issues.  He said the infrastructure is very 
important.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that the Council can not presume to tell land owners 
what to do with their land.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge to adopt Resolution No. 1372-12, and died for 
lack of a second. 

On motion of Councilmember Walter, and seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to table Resolution No. 1372-12, Majestic Ranch Development Agreement, 
pending a work session. 

Discussion occurred on when the work session will be and who will be invited. It is the 
consensus that staff will schedule the work session and contact all necessary parties of 
the date and time.   

Resolution No. 1373-12:   

Mr. Patel read Resolution No. 1373-12 by title only.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH CIVIC PROPERTIES, L.L.C., 
AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 
SUCH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, (Sunaire Ranch).  

On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to table Resolution No. 1373-12, Sunaire Ranch, pending a work session. 

Ordinance No. 588-12:  
 
Mr. Patel read Ordinance No. 588-12 by title only.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 12 of 24 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE “TOWN OF FLORENCE ZONING MAP” BY CHANGING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND FROM PINAL 
COUNTY GENERAL RURAL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT TO TOWN OF FLORENCE 
SINGLE–RESIDENTIAL RANCHETTE (R1-R) ZONING DISTRICT (FLORENCE 
MILITARY RESERVATION ANNEXATION INITIAL/COMPARABLE ZONING). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the ordinance is 
procedural.  When property is being annexed, comparable zoning must be granted.  
The Town is going to maintain the comparable zoning that Pinal County had on the 
property.  He said it is federal property and is not subject to zoning.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if they are rezoning the military reservation, should they develop 
a zoning code for military installation in case the Town decides to annex more of their 
property.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated the Town could create a new zoning district or could do it under 
heavy industrial, PUD/I -1 or I-2 type of zoning district.  They are on federal land and are 
not subject to zoning.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 588-12. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a sole source contract in the 
amount of $212,350.00, with Wood, Patel & Associates, Inc., for CLOMR/LOMR 
work on the Territory Square site. 

 
Mr. Eckhoff gave a brief history of the North End Framework Vision Plan and its zoning.  
He stated the request is to move forward with some of the phases of the flood plain 
mitigation reclamation process on the territory square property.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained the CLOMR process.  He said the Town is taking the lead to 
develop the property.  The Town is also pursuing the next phase, which is the LOMR on 
the first 35-40 acres of Town property, which is across the street from Town Hall and 
north of Heritage Park.  He explained what is planned for the area.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff said Wood, Patel, & Associates, are leaders in this type of work and have a 
great success rate on flood plain mitigation reclamation of a large scale, such as 
Florence’s.  He said a new library may be built on the property along with a larger 
community/fitness center facility.  The heritage and history of the downtown will remain 
intact. He said they look to commence the effort in January, should the contract be 
approved.  A benefit of doing the CLOMR on the entire site assists in simplifying the 
LOMR process.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 13 of 24 
 

Councilmember Montaño inquired why the Town opted to sole source the expenditure 
rather than go out for bid. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated they elected to sole source because Wood, Patel & Associates have 
already gone through the rigorous process.  They scored the highest in the interview 
process and were ranked in the top two.  He said they presented ideas that none of the 
other seventeen firms had on the table.  Their approach was unique and their 
qualifications excelled the others that applied.  The Town has worked closely with the 
firm since 2009 along with Swaback Partners.  Mr. Ash Patel has a great track record 
on the type of work he does.  He said an analysis was done to ensure that that they 
have outstanding ethics and the Town was receiving great value of service.  He said 
they could have lost two to three years of work if they had to start the process over.  He 
said the Town is saving money, time, and staff resources.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired where the funding is coming from. 
 
Ms. Becki Guilin, Finance Director, stated the money is funded through the Capital 
Improvement Program Fund that is funded by private construction tax.  It was budgeted 
and will flow through two fiscal years.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff said in doing the work, Wood, Patel & Associates, will be addressing some 
of the other drainage issues that are related to the property.     
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to enter into a sole source contract in the amount of $212,350.00, with Wood, 
Patel & Associates, Inc., for CLOMR/LOMR work on the Territory Square site. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Design Review application for a Town of 
Florence downtown historic district monument sign located at the northeast 
corner of Main Street and Butte Avenue in Florence, Arizona, (HDAC-08-12-DR). 
 
Mr. Eckhoff said the sign is being proposed side for the north east corner of Butte and 
Main.  He said National Bank of Arizona had their groundbreaking ceremony and will 
start construction within the next few weeks on their new facility. He said discussions 
have included erecting a Town of Florence sign on their site.  The Town has worked 
closely with them since 2006 and part of the transaction includes the Town abandoning 
a portion of right-of-way so the bank could have more property to build on.  They have 
received varied opinions by the public on the sign.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff said they had a work session with the Historic District Advisory Commission 
(HDAC) and discussed the signage.  He said initially the propose concepts were not 
acceptable because they looked to similar to the bank building.  The sign needed to 
stand out alone and they would need to be able to replicate it should the Town elect to 
add another sign at a different site.  It was determined that the sign needed to have a 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 14 of 24 
 

larger community purpose.  The intersection is very busy and the sign would provide for 
a great opportunity to promote the community.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff described the appearance of the signs and what the signs should capture 
such as identifying that you are entering into a historic district.  Discussion occurred on 
an electronic message center.  He said discussions occurred with SHPO and the 
HDAC.  He said SHPO explained that the historical integrity must be maintained for 
existing buildings.  He said placing the sign on the bank property would not be an issue 
as it did not have a historical building on it.  He said the sign would not have a 
detrimental effect of the district but rather, help the Historic District.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff said the HDAC approved Option D with modifications, which is now Option 
F.   He said they are trying to increase the traffic in the district and downtown area.  He 
said the sign would help capture the audience that drives through that intersection.  He 
said the sign will help promote events such as Jr. Parada and Home Tour.  It would also 
help promote smaller events throughout the year.  The Town would have control of what 
is placed on the sign.  The sign will be on an easement that is dedicated to the Town of 
Florence.  The sign will not be used for commercial purposes.  There will be a fiscal 
impact; however, the total cost has not been established.  There is an agreement for the 
bank to provide a sign on the corner for the Town as part of the right-of-way 
abandonment.  He said adding the electronic messaging center is an extra cost 
component, and the Town will need to pay for the cost differential.  He said the Town 
has the funding available.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired about relaying the information from the HDAC to the Council. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated the sign reflects HDACs recommendation with regards to the 
aesthetics of the design.  The sign company made the modifications.  HDAC wants to 
ensure that the sign is not establishing precedence and will not be a sign that will be 
used elsewhere in the District.  It is staff’s opinion that it should not set precedence and 
will not be used elsewhere in the District or in an area that would take away the 
historical integrity of the building.  This sign would not be replicated anywhere else in 
the District.  He said this type of sign may be beneficial in other areas of the community 
to attract traffic off of the highways.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the HDAC made a recommendation on the sign they preferred. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the HDAC voted unanimously for Option D subject to the sign 
being modified to become more rectangular and less square and to lower the height of 
the EMC panel slightly below the bricks as well as create a more prominent area on the 
top where it said Historic Downtown Florence.  He said the sign company made the 
modifications, and created Option F, which is Option D with modifications.          
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to approve Option F of the Design Review application for a Town of Florence 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 15 of 24 
 

downtown historic district monument sign located at the northeast corner of Main Street 
and Butte Avenue in Florence, Arizona, (HDAC-08-12-DR). 
 
Discussion occurred on the various sign options, space for messages, and reasoning 
for choosing Option D with modifications. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained the size of the signs, electronic message center sizes, and 
graphics. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired about the placement of the sign pointing to the 
southwest and possible issues with the traffic light pole that will be directly in front of the 
sign.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff said the sign will be placed on an angle; it has approximately 140 degree 
viewing perspective so it can be read from almost any angle on Butte and Main.  They 
may need to set up a mock sign to see how it affects the sign.  He said the sign will be 
set as far back as possible within the Town’s easement.  The easement is not very large 
but it allows the sign to be located where it will not block the vision triangle.   There is 
room to adjust the sign in either direction before the bank starts construction.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff said another option would be to eliminate the pole entirely.  He said there 
will be a clear view of the sign from other perspectives.   
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if they had an alternate location. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated it could be adjusted a little to the east.  A modification of the 
easement would need to be done.  The orientation of the sign could also be changed.   
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated they will provide a mockup of the 
signage and will install it.  They will also play with angles to ensure the best visibility.  It 
is noted that the bulk of the traffic on Butte headed westbound and Main on the south 
side of Butte.  If the sign is angled towards Butte at another twenty degrees to have an 
angle of thirty degrees will give you the most optimal vision because of the length of a 
right triangle, it will give you the greatest vision on Butte and Main.  It is also possible to 
move the light pole. 
 
Councilmember Celaya said that moving it to the east would put it where cars are 
stopped at the stop light.   
 
Mr. Costa stated in their test, it was quite visible from 100 feet.  They will work on the 
location of the sign to provide for the best visibility. 
 
Councilmember Montaño said he doesn’t have a concern with visibility. His concern is 
about beautification and where they want to put the sign where it can be seen.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 16 of 24 
 

Someone may want to take a picture of it.  People will be looking at the creativity of the 
sign.  The light pole blocks the view. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that the Historical District guidelines do not allow for digital 
signs to be in the District.  He said the proposed sign is in the District.  He said the code 
may need to be changed rather than continually providing variances.  The Town needs 
to adhere to its code.  He will vote “No” on this issue.   
 
Councilmember Celaya noted that the HDAC was accepting of the sign.  They 
understood with the type of building that was going to be located there and made good, 
positive recommendations on the sign and provided a unanimous recommendation for 
approval.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Option D was the preferred choice initially.  He inquired what 
would be considered cost prohibitive.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated the recommendation is for Option F.  He said a dollar amount for the 
sign had not been negotiated so the total cost was unknown; however, the estimated 
cost is to be $10,000 - $15,000. There are several considerations that must be 
considered, such as: 

 Value of the right-of-way that was abandoned 
 Value of the easement that was granted to the Town  
 Value of the sign 

 
Mr. Eckhoff stated the cost differential must be determined.  He said there is no issue 
with Option A because the agreement was for a basic monument sign was provided by 
the bank.  He said when the Town moved forward with the electronic technology, it 
added a cost component that was not envisioned by the Bank or the Town five years 
ago.  He said there is now a cost differential.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired to the Council if they want to approve this because there is no 
dollar figure attached to the request.  He inquired where the money is being allocated 
from. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that it will be money well spent as something has been 
needed there for years.  He said Council needs to move forward on this item.  Council 
can choose to place a cap on the allowable amount to be sent.  He stated that the bank 
would fund a portion of the sign and the Town would fund the remaining balance.   
 
Mr. Patel stated that there are still some unknowns such as the cost associated with 
what the bank’s contribution is going to be.  He said if the cost exceeds $25,000, it will 
come before the Council for approval.  If the cost is below $25,000 and the Town is able 
to accommodate the cost within the existing General Fund, then they will incorporate 
the cost with the fund.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 17 of 24 
 

Vice-Mayor Smith stated that he wouldn’t classify the easement as part of the cost.  If 
you were to add up the square footage of the street that the Town gave them, it would 
equate to approximately 1/3 of the property.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would prefer to put a cap on the cost. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that they need to proceed.   
   
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to approve Option F of the Design Review application for a Town of Florence 
downtown historic district monument sign, located at the northeast corner of Main Street 
and Butte Avenue, in Florence, Arizona, (HDAC-08-12-DR). 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of appointing an Interim Town Manager 
effective at 5:00 p.m., on December 14, 2012.  
 
Mr. Mannato stated that Mr. Patel will be leaving his employment with the Town 
effective December 14, 2012, at 5:00 p.m., and it would be in the best interest of the 
Town to appoint an interim until such time that the position is filled.  It is requested that 
Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, be appointed Interim Town Manager 
until such time as the Council decides.     
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and carried to 
appoint Lisa Garcia, as Interim Town Manager, effective at 5:00 p.m., on December 14, 
2012.  
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of establishing a work session date to discuss 
privatization of sanitation and recycling services.  
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Deputy Town Manager, said on September 10, 2012, the Florence 
Town Council gave direction to Town staff to negotiate a contract with the preferred 
vendor, Right Away Disposal (RAD), for the privatization of solid waste and recycling 
services.  Town staff believes they have drafted a mutually agreeable contract that is in 
the best interest of the Town of Florence and its residents.  
 
Town staff was approached by some of its Councilmembers that are supportive in 
moving forward with placing the draft contract on the agenda and other 
Councilmembers who would prefer to have a work session to discuss the option of the 
Town maintaining the services and investigating the option of the Town to provide 
curbside recycling services.  Town staff is asking for the Council to vote on how to 
proceed and to provide direction to Town staff for next steps.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that five of the Councilmembers toured the RAD facility in Apache 
Junction, Arizona, as well as the United Fiber Facility in Chandler, Arizona.  The tours 
sparked discussions if the Town should investigate providing recycling services to its 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 18 of 24 
 

residents in lieu of privatizing the sanitation recycling services.  Staff did a cost 
comparison and is able to save in operations and maintenance.  Revenues are 
projected at $89,000 for recyclables and the Town would see approximately $35,000 in 
savings from the transportation and landfill costs for a combined total of $124,000.   
 
Mr. Knudson said if the Town pursued this option, there would be immediate capital 
expenses associated with the purchase of a sanitation truck ($260,000), the 
construction of a building used to house and transport the recyclables ($36,000), and 
the cost of the recyclable containers ($175,000).  The total immediate capital costs are 
estimated at $471,000.  Based on this analysis and the health of the sanitation fund, 
Town staff estimates that customer rates could be reduced to as low as $21.00 to 
$23.00 per month.  Currently, residents are paying $28.98 per month.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that staff has negotiated with RAD, and their fee for residents is 
$13.50 per month, or $13.25 if the resident chooses to auto pay.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that in 2009, the solid waste lobbyists approached the legislature 
and were successful in deregulating the ability for cities and towns to regulate 
commercial solid waste pickup.  He said the business owners in Florence are able to 
choose who they want to do business with for solid waste disposal.    
 
Mr. Knudson stated in 2010, the solid waste lobbyists were pursuing for similar 
deregulation of multi-family housing.  The Town sees this as a pattern and the next step 
that they will see is the deregulation of residential.  He said if this type of legislation is 
passed by the Legislature, residents will have the option to select any vendor they 
choose to provide their solid waste and recycling services.   While many residents (and 
legislators) may see this as a benefit to the customer, because they are able to pick and 
choose their provider, the reality is that our roadways will be impacted with multiple 
sanitation trucks throughout the week that can lead to undue hardship to the our 
roadways and infrastructure, and would increase traffic resulting in safety concerns for 
vehicles and pedestrians.  Staff is concerned that the cost of capital to incorporate 
curbside recycling services by the Town could be lost if future legislation disallowed 
Florence’s ability to provide the service without competition.  The Town of Florence 
simply could not compete with the rates provided by the private sector.   
 
Mr. Knudson provided information about the contract, which includes: maintaining the 
existing levels of services that our residents currently receive, with the addition of 
curbside recycling services; same day solid waste and recycling services; a community 
clean-up day event; once a month bulk trash services; provide free solid waste services 
for all Town facilities; holiday tree program; and assistance at up to ten special events 
per year.  The term of the contract is five years with the option for the Town to renew for 
up to five additional one year terms.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the contract identifies fines and fees that the Town can assess 
the provider based on customer service and performance.  The Town has also identified 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 19 of 24 
 

a clause within the contract that allows the Town to terminate the contract if they are 
fined an excess of $2500 per year.     
 
Mr. Knudson stated the rate identified in the contact for residents is $13.50 per month 
($13.25 per month if customer is on auto pay).  The contract limits the amount of the 
rate increase based on a national index, which is 85% of the Consumer Price Index, 
and 15% of diesel fuel price index by the DOE.  In no instance can this exceed 5% per 
year.  The average increase over the last few years is between 2% and 3%. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that there are sufficient vacancies at comparable salaries within the 
Public Works Department to accommodate the sanitation staff that would be affected by 
the privatization of these services.  No Town employee will lose their job if the Town 
Council adopts the draft contract.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired where the employees would go because the talks have 
stated at one point there were enough vacant positions, and at others, that there weren’t 
enough positions.  She inquired the following: what positions are open, do the 
employees qualify, and what impact will it have on the employee. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated the positions available within the Public Works Department include 
Sanitation Worker, Maintenance Worker, WWTP Operator, and Utility Systems 
Operator.  He said those four positions have been identified for the four employees who 
will be affected by the change.  He said additional positions may be available in other 
departments.   The positions are similar in grade.  He said positions have not been 
created for the four personnel.  The Town has had a very close look at the positions that 
the Town has available within its salary plan. They did not create new positions for 
people.  The Town is in the service industry and is in the business of providing services 
to its residents.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he has a lot of questions and is requesting to have a work 
session.    
 
Councilmember Walter stated that the Council received an email from George Martinez 
who stated that the Town provides the best garbage service and the garbage man is 
friendly. He stated in the email that he loves the service.  She said that he offered a lot 
of valid points and solutions that the Council should look at. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that the Town cannot compete with the private sector.  
He appreciates that the Town has positions available in that area for them to move to; 
however, the Council’s priority is the best interest of its residents.  The Town cannot 
meet the price.  He said the Town needs to look at having a transfer station or a sub-
station collection station in Florence because the company is delivering services to Eloy 
and Casa Grande; as well as putting us in a centralized location to be able to provide 
services.  He said Florence is unable to compete with the private sector. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 20 of 24 
 

Councilmember Walter stated that she spoke with the owners and they mentioned that 
this is their second garbage service company that they have owned.  They opened their 
first company approximately twelve years ago and sold it to Allied or Waste 
Management.  She said the current business has been open since 2007, which is five 
years.  She inquired what would happen if they chose to sell their business to Allied or 
Waste Management in the future, and inquired what would happen to the contract. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins said they are bound per the terms of the contract.  He stated 
that the Town will be receiving money from selling off its assets and will be kept in a 
separate fund for that very purpose.  He inquired if the Town should decide that it isn’t 
working out and want to resurrect the sanitation services, will the funds be available.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated the contract follows the service. If the company were to sell their 
business, they would also be selling the contract.  The terms and conditions would be 
status quo.  The Town would have options if the company were to sell, such as going to 
the private sector and identifying who they would like to do business with.   He said the 
Town negotiated a 5% franchise fee within the contract.  Monies from the franchise fee, 
sale of the assets, and the fund balance could be used for resuming service in the 
future or providing additional solid waste or sanitation services to the community.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that the agenda item is to establish a work session meeting 
date.  This item is not the work session itself.   
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that Mr. Knudson provided the Council with three 
options, and he questioned him about a fourth option.  He doesn’t see any remarks 
about the fourth option in the materials provided to Council. He doesn’t have a problem 
with recycling, only the trash pickup.  He inquired if they only outsourced the trash 
pickup, how much money would the Town receive for the recycling; and what would the 
reduction in fees would be.   The Town will save money because there would be less 
solid waste being disposed and money would be received because of the recycling.  He 
inquired how many people who are serviced by Johnson Utilities, for water and 
wastewater, have sanitation services provided by the Town.  He inquired if the 
personnel that are being considered for the water/wastewater position needs to be 
certified.  He said he has a lot of questions that still haven’t been answered by staff. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge inquired if the option is to set a date for a work session 
and/or move forward with approving the contract. 
 
Mayor stated the contract is not up for approval. 
 
Councilmember Walter reiterated Mayor Rankin’s comments. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that the question was addressed to staff. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 21 of 24 
 

Mr. Mannato stated that the only item on the agenda is for 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of whether to establish the date for a work session to 
discuss this further. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that a few of the Councilmembers would like to see a work session 
take place, so the option is being brought before the Council as an action item.  The 
Council has the option of having a work session or can request the item be brought 
before the Council at a future meeting to take action on the contract. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that it will be difficult to explain to the constituents as to 
why the Council elected not to reduce their sanitation fees in half when they had the 
ability to reduce the fees.  He doesn’t think a work session is necessary for every item 
that comes before the Council.  He said Council needs to address their questions with 
the staff before the Council meeting.   
 
Councilmember Walter stated that Council has gone to staff, they have taken the tour, 
and they still have questions. She said there are other avenues and other solutions that 
have not been explored by staff.  She said that Councilmember Montaño has addressed 
his questions to staff and has not received a response.  She has also asked questions 
and they remain to be answered.  She said they cannot in good faith move forward 
when everything has not been explored. 
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired when do they draw the line of how long to allow people 
to explore. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins concurred with Councilmember Celaya.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he, Councilmember Montaño and Councilmember Walter 
were not on the last Council when the subject was first brought before Council.  He said 
that after looking at the contract they have come up with questions.  He had addressed 
his questions to staff and has not received a response until he went on the tour.  He 
said Council can also look at how they have set their rates.  The rates were set 
approximately five to six years ago, and were based during a time of growth.  The rates 
continually are going up with a five percent increase, no matter what.  He said the 
growth rate has not occurred and the Town has not had to purchase more equipment.  
The money continues to build and the money can go back to what the Council is 
discussing.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired to Mayor Rankin if he had a solution for reducing the 
rates to make them comparable to what is being proposed. 
 
Mayor Rankin said he doesn’t believe that they can reduce them to what is being 
proposed.  He said the staff recommendation does not provide any options for Council 
to consider, which is why he is recommending a work session.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 22 of 24 
 

Councilmember Hawkins stated that staff has found the best available deal and has 
brought it before Council.    
 
Councilmember Walter concurred with Councilmember Hawkins comments. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated there are companies willing to come to Florence to pick up their 
recyclables.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that Council does not know which direction legislation 
is headed.   
 
Councilmember Celaya concurred with Councilmember Woolridge and added that the 
Council needs to be cognizant of deregulation. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to not 
have a work session to discuss privatization of sanitation and recycling services; and 
request that Council present the contract to the Council.   
 
Roll Call: 
Mayor Rankin: No 
Vice-Mayor Smith: No 
Councilmember Hawkins: Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge: Yes 
Councilmember Celaya: Yes 
Councilmember Montaño: No 
Councilmember Walter: No 
 
Motion Failed. 
Yes:  3; No: 4 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter to have a 
work session to discuss privatization of sanitation and recycling services. 
 
Roll Call: 
Mayor Rankin: Yes 
Vice-Mayor Smith: Yes 
Councilmember Montaño: Yes 
Councilmember Walter: Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins: No 
Councilmember Woolridge: No 
 
Motion Passed. 
Yes:  4; No: 3 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 23 of 24 
 

CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Celaya expressed great appreciation to Mr. Patel for his dedicated 
service.  He has been an outstanding model with the highest expectations for 
professionalism and ethics.  He has represented the Town with the class that the Town 
of Florence deserves.  He is very well respected by his peers and the Council has 
received several compliments from other communities.  His heart for the community and 
work he has done for the community has been outstanding.  He is an honorary Florence 
native. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the electric light parade will be held on Friday, 
December 7, 2012, and he encouraged everyone to attend.  He wished Mr. Patel the 
best in all of his future endeavors.  He has always made himself available to the Council 
and is very knowledgeable in policy and laws.   
 
Councilmember Walter thanked Mr. Patel for his service to the Council.  She said it has 
been great to work with him.  She wished him well. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that Florence is losing one the best Town Manager’s in 
Arizona.  Mr. Patel’s heart has always been in the right place for Florence.  He has 
always worked for the betterment of Florence.  He will be truly missed.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge concurred with the Councilmembers’ comments.  She added 
that he is an exception young man and appreciated his candor, intelligence, and love for 
job and for Florence.  He said Florence has some big shoes to fill and hopefully 
Florence will be blessed with someone who is as good as he is.  She wished him 
blessings and good luck on his future endeavors. He will be missed. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that he and Mr. Patel have a long history.  He thanked him for 
everything and said he will be missed. 
 
Mayor Rankin recalled Mr. Patel’s appointment to the Town Manager position.  He said 
he has come a long way with the Town.  He said he is a great administrator and a great 
friend.  He is always willing to assist wherever needed.  He thanked Mrs. Patel for her 
support to Mr. Patel and to the Town.  He invited everyone to a farewell reception for 
Mr. Patel on December 12, 2012.  He thanked Mr. Patel for everything that he has done 
for our community. 
 
Mayor Rankin thanked everyone for their concern with their granddaughters’ well-being.  
He said people need to reiterate safety with regards to quads.  He said it is imperative 
for parents to ensure their children’s safety when riding quads. He wished everyone a 
Merry Christmas.  
 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2012 
Page 24 of 24 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:21 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on December 3, 2012, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
DECEMBER 10, 2012, AT 4:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL:  
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño,, Walter, Woolridge  
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 10, 2012  
Page 1 of 1 

 
3. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

For the purpose of discussion of the public body regarding interviews of the Town 
Manager applicants, in accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(1). 
 

On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session 

 
4.  ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to adjourn 
to Executive Session. 
 
5.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 6:57 p.m.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on December 10, 2012, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
DECEMBER 11, 2012, AT 4:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL:  
 
Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge  
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 11, 2012 
Page 1 of 1 

 
3. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

For the purpose of discussion of the public body regarding interviews of the Town 
Manager applicants, in accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(1). 
 

On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to adjourn 
to Executive Session. 

 
4.  ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session. 
 
5.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on December 11, 2012, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 











































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10a.  

MEETING DATE: January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director 

 
SUBJECT: HDAC-08-12-DR: Recommendation on Town of  
                   Florence Downtown Monument Sign                        

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
          Subject: Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Option F for Case HDAC-08-12-DR, a Design Review application for 
a Town of Florence downtown historic district monument sign located at the northeast 
corner of Main Street and Butte Avenue in Florence, Arizona, subject to any conditions 
recommended by the Town Council. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
National Bank of Arizona (the “Bank”) has long played a major role in the business 
community in the Florence area and has maintained a branch office in an existing 
building on Main Street since approximately 1997. 
 
In 2005, the Bank purchased property at the northeast corner of Main Street and Butte 
Avenue for a free standing building.  This property is well located at the south entrance 
to the historic downtown area of Florence.  The Bank pursued Historical District 
Advisory Commission (HDAC) approval and permitting soon thereafter and the Town 
abandoned 13th Street, from Main Street to Bailey Street, to accommodate their plans, 
but the deep recession put this project on hold for several years.  Revamped plans for 
the project were approved by the HDAC in 2012 and were processed for permitting.    
 
The Bank had a groundbreaking on November 20, 2012, and commenced construction 
in December 2012. This particular application pertains only to the monument sign that 
will be owned and maintained by the Town of Florence on an easement on the Bank 
property dedicated to the Town of Florence. The Bank will not have any other additional 
monument signs on their site, but they will have commercial signage attached to their 
building. The Bank agreed to this sign as part of the right-of-way abandonment and they 
are aware of the long standing streetscape plans that called for a Town sign on this 
corner.  



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 2 of 8 
 
 

 

Original sign concepts, previously developed as part of an overall streetscape plan, did 
not include an Electronic Message Center (EMC) or Reader Panel, but were considered 
as staff looked for what additional benefits this sign could provide to the Town. The 
EMC or Reader Panel signs could go beyond announcing the Historic Downtown 
District and provide an avenue for promoting events and sharing non-commercial 
messages.  
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

ANALYSIS: 

Town staff and Fluoresco Sign Company, in conjunction with the Bank, have designed 
multiple monument sign options that seek to be in concert with the vision of the Historic 
District, while also serving to promote the historic downtown area and possibly to 
provide a mechanism for promoting Town events. 
 

National Bank of Arizona 

Main Street 

Butte Avenue 

Town Monument Sign 
HDAC-08-12-DR 



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 3 of 8 
 
 

 

When staff accepts an application for a property within the Historic District, one of the 
first tools in a planner’s arsenal of educational references that is quite useful in 
evaluating a new submittal is the “Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation”, 
which works hand and hand with the guidelines. The National Park Service created 
these ten basic principles (Standards) in 1977, to guide owners in preserving the 
historic integrity of a building. 
 
The Standards, amended in 1990, recognize the need for adapting historic structures, 
which could perhaps include monument signs, to modern times and therefore allow for 
changes and new construction that are compatible with the building and/or the 
designated Historic District.  
 
The Standards for Rehabilitation are general enough that they apply to all architectural 
styles, periods and building types. The ten standards are intended to be applied in a 
reasonable manner, taking into consideration economic and technical feasibility of the 
project. 
 
The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties: 
Standards for Rehabilitation 
 
Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of making possible a compatible use for a 
property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or 
features that convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values. 
 

1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 
requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment. 

 
2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal 

of distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships 
characterizing a property will be avoided. 

 
3. Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. 

Changes creating a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or elements from other historic properties, will not be 
undertaken. 

 
4. Changes to a property having acquired historic significance in their own right will 

be retained and preserved. 
 

5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples 
of craftsmanship characterizing a property will be preserved. 

 



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 4 of 8 
 
 

 

6. Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the 
severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature will match the old in design, color, texture and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be 
substantiated by documentary, physical or pictorial evidence. 

 
7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 

 
8. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy 

historic materials, features, and spatial relationships characterizing the property. 
The new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the 
historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect 
the integrity of the property and its environment. 

 
10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in 

such a manner, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired. 

 
Staff contends that when a new building is constructed in the Historic District, efforts 
must occur to distinguish the new construction from historic buildings in the District. This 
rule is also applicable to new signage proposed along with new building construction. 
As staff and the HDAC supported a more modern bank building for National Bank of 
Arizona, including the provision of a drive-thru, staff contends a more modern sign is 
appropriate for this site. For added perspective, a sign would have to be viewed 
differently when being placed on a site with an existing historic building, such as the 
1891 County Courthouse. 
 
After consulting with other departments, which helped staff to realize the bigger 
objective of this sign, referring to the Historic District Preservation Guidelines and 
reviewing the aforementioned Standards, staff contends sign Option F with the EMC is 
the best sign for this location.  That sign complements the building on the site, has 
appropriate context and meets the other objectives of this sign as supported by the 
Parks and Recreation Department, the Economic Development Coordinator, the Public 
Information Officer and others. Staff contends that this more modern EMC sign would 
not infringe on the integrity of the Florence Historic District, but would reinforce the 
following components of the Florence Townsite Historic District Vision Statement: 
 



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 5 of 8 
 
 

 

 “Promote quality design with an emphasis on small town historical character and 
future vision.” 

 “Promote reinvestment and attract new development.” 

 “Promote downtown as the symbolic and cultural center of the community”. 

Staff is aware of the differences of opinions on the monument sign concepts and 
concerns have been raised whether this more modern sign would impact the integrity of 
the District or establish an unwelcome precedent. Staff corresponded with the State 
Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) to gain additional insight and direction on this 
challenging case and SHPO offered the following advice:   
 

 “Jim Garrison (State Historic Preservation Officer) and I (Eric Vondy, 
Preservation Incentives Programs Coordinator) reviewed and discussed the 
signs and we concur that none of them are a violation of the Standards 
(Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties: 
Standards for Rehabilitation).  An electronic message board is acceptable and 
based on its location probably the best choice.” 

 
Additional Sign Information 
 
This report covers the six options being considered: 
 

 Option A 

 Option B 

 Option C 

 Option D 

 Option E 

 Option F 

Materials 
 

 The manufacturer will fabricate the cabinet portion of the sign out of aluminum 
with a faux rust paint finish. A clear coat would be applied over top to preserve 
the finish with typical wear and tear caused by the desert southwest conditions.   

 These monument sign options do not infringe on Town codes for materials used, 
but defer from the Guidelines by allowing plastic/acrylic used in a sign.  



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 

 The intent is to supply red bricks from Florence, Arizona. If locally sourced bricks 
are not possible, similar bricks will be utilized. 

 
Sign Location 
 

 The proposed sign would be located on a busy, off-set and signalized 
intersection and should have no impact on the visibility of the corner. Public 
Works constructed a mock up of the proposed Option F monument sign and the 
mock up was placed on the subject corner to determine the final sign location 
with greatest visibility from all approaches (north, south, west and east bound 
pedestrian and vehicular traffic). The mock up assisted in evaluating scale, best 
viewing angle, how the sign will obtain electricity, etc. Pictures from the mock up 
site visit are included in this report. 

 
 Landscaping in front of the proposed sign will be minimal to prevent landscaping 

from blocking the sign. 
 

 All of the proposed monument signs are designed to be out in the elements. The 
reader board/EMC is weatherproof and designed for exterior applications.  

 
 Modern improvements, such as the traffic signal, already exist at the intersection, 

thus making a more modern sign more compatible for this corner. Staff further 
notes that the Subway and Circle K properties at the subject intersection have 
existing modern signs. 

 
 This is one of the busier intersections in Florence and currently the most 

prominent location for promoting Town events and other non-commercial 
messages.  

 
Sign Height  
 

 The sign options do not exceed the 8’ height requirement per Town Code, but 
defer from the Guidelines by exceeding the suggested guideline height of 4’ 
above curb elevation. However, staff contends that the height requirement for 
monument signs is meant to apply to commercial signs and not to public, non-
commercial signs such as the proposed monument signs and the existing Town 
marquee sign. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 

 This sign is a non-commercial Town-owned sign on an easement dedicated to 
the Town. Town Codes and the Guidelines generally refer to commercial and 
private development and not facilities owned by the Town. 



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 7 of 8 
 
 

 

 
 Since this sign has a broader purpose beneficial to the entire Town and not just 

the Historic District and because Town funds will be necessary to fund the 
subject sign, staff contends that the Town Council should act on this case in 
conjunction with the HDAC.  

 
 Use of an EMC or Reader Panel sign might eliminate, or reduce the use of, the 

banner now being used across Main Street to promote Town events. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Option F sign will have a direct $15,000 financial impact to the Town. The Bank will 
pay the remainder of the cost of the $32,000 monument sign plus the cost of installing 
the sign and providing power to the sign. The electrical meter will be in the Town’s 
name and the Town will be responsible for the long-term ownership and maintenance of 
the sign. The Town will purchase an extended 10 year warranty and maintenance 
agreement for the sign and the sign will be covered under the Town’s insurance policy. 
 
The Bank is contributing towards the sign fabrication, construction and installation costs; 
providing an easement for the sign; providing an easement for the electric/internet to the 
sign; as well as contributing to substantial off-site improvements along Bailey Street, 
Butte Avenue and Main Street as part of the agreement made with the Bank when the 
Town abandoned 13th Street between Main Street and Bailey Street. The corner 
monument sign, a new wider (pedestrian friendly) sidewalk along Main Street and new 
landscaping along all street frontages are consistent with the Main Street streetscape 
plans. 
 
If the Town were to pursue the Option A sign, the direct fiscal impact to the Town should 
be zero as the basic sign cost is about $15,000 to $16,000 less than the Option F sign 
due to the absence of the EMC on the Option A sign. 
 
The $15,000 can be allotted from monies set aside for economic 
development/redevelopment or alternatively this expense could be covered under 
Community Development’s budget. Mr. Patel had previously approved the use of Town 
funds for this sign and this authorization would need to be reaffirmed by the Interim 
Town Manager per Town policy. 
 
The Town benefits from the proposed monument signage (EMC or Reader Panel) in 
numerous other ways per the following: 
 

1. Electronic message centers allow an unlimited number of message changes and 
variable controls, all easily completed with a computer. The result is lower labor 
costs and elimination of the physical liabilities often associated with copy 
changes on traditional reader boards. 



         Subject: RCA for Town Monument Signage   
Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 

Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 

 
2. Electronic Message centers and Reader Panels communicate variable messages 

as people pass by, allowing greater flexibility in communicating to the public. 
3. The Town staff can change the message as needed to provide information about 

specific Town events, thus offering an economic development and tourism 
benefit, and also can be used for emergency services. 
 

4. Software is available that would enables the Town to display sophisticated logos 
or images on the EMC precisely as planned. 
 

5. A direct result from the EMC or Reader Board is increased foot traffic to local 
Town events. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The HDAC forwarded the Mayor and Council a unanimous favorable recommendation 
on the Option F sign per their November 28, 2012, meeting at which they reviewed all 
sign options.  
 
On December 3, 2012, the Mayor and Town Council voted 5-2 to approve the Option F 
monument sign. Upon the subsequent request of the Council, this item is being 
resubmitted to the Mayor and Town Council for further consideration. 
 
Staff finds that all of the proposed monument sign options are in compliance with 
applicable Town codes and also in keeping with the general character established for 
area and the intent of the Historic District Guidelines. Furthermore, staff suggests that 
the signs with the EMC would be beneficial in promoting the District and community 
events and would also contribute to economic development and revitalization efforts in 
the District. Staff and the HDAC recommend that the Town Council approve Option F 
for case HDAC-08-12-DR. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

National Bank of Arizona/Historic Downtown Florence Monument Packet  
Mock Up Site Visit Pictures 

 

 
 
 
 





















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
11a.  

MEETING DATE:  January 7, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Mayor appointment of a Chair and Vice-Chair to  
                    the Redevelopment Commission 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Board and Commission appointments   Meeting Date: January 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Mayor appointment of Chair Elizabeth Kizer and Vice Chair Anne Cartier-Bresson to the 
Redevelopment Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2013. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
As per Section 32.051 Membership (B), the Mayor shall designate a Chairperson and 
Vice Chairperson from among the Commissioners at the first Council Meeting of each 
year.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Mayor appointment of Chair Elizabeth Kizer and Vice Chair Anne Cartier-Bresson to the 
Redevelopment Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2013. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

None 


	January 7, 2013 Agenda
	Page 2 
	Page 3

	8. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS 
	8a. Ordinance No. 590-13 Downtown Commercial Text Amendment

	9. CONSENT
	9a. Library Advisory Board Appointments
	9b. Parks and Rec Board Appointment
	9c. Planning and Zoning Commission Appointments
	9d. Redevelopment Commission Appointments
	9e. HDAC Appointments
	9f. Caliente Casa Del Sol Sp.Event Liq License
	9g. FGMHA Special Event Liquor License
	9h. Acceptance of AMR Units 17B and 18 Public Improvements
	9i. December 3, 2012 TC Minutes
	9i December 10, 2012 TC Minutes
	9i. December 11, 2012 TC Minutes

	9j i. September 19, 2012 Libary Board Minutes
	9j i. November 28, 2012 Library Board Minutes

	9j ii. August 16, 2012 Planning Zoning Comm Minutes
	9j iii. October 30, 2012 Redevelopment Comm Minutes

	10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	10a. Downtown Monument Sign HDAC-08-12-DR

	11. NEW BUSINESS
	11a. Chair and Vice Chair Red. Comm Appts.


